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PER CURIAM.

Raymond Anderson appeals after he pleaded guilty to child-pornography
offenses and was sentenced by the district court.! His counsel has moved to withdraw
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and filed a brief under Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967), challenging the
district court’s jurisdiction.

We reject Anderson’s arguments that the district court lacked personal and
subject-matter jurisdiction. The district court had jurisdiction over violations of
federal law, see 18 U.S.C. § 3231 (providing that district courts have original
jurisdiction, exclusive of state courts, of all offenses against the laws of the United
States); United States v. Hayes, 574 F.3d 460, 471-72 (8th Cir. 2009) (stating that
because the indictment sufficiently alleged violations of the laws of the United States,
the district court had jurisdiction), and 18 U.S.C. § 2252A was validly enacted under
the Commerce Clause, see United States v. Perez-Carrillo, 365 F. App’x 32, 32 (8th
Cir. 2010) (per curiam) (rejecting the claim that Congress exceeded its authority
under the Commerce Clause in enacting 8 2252A(a)(5)(B)); see also United States
v. Konn, 634 F. App’x 818, 821 (2d Cir. 2015) (per curiam) (stating that Congress did
not exceed its authority in enacting 8§ 2252A because the internet is a channel and
instrumentality of interstate commerce). Further, the court had personal jurisdiction
over Anderson because he was brought before it on a federal indictment. See United
States v. Hobbs, 550 F. App’x 345, 345 (8th Cir. 2014) (per curiam) (concluding that
the district court had personal jurisdiction over the defendant by virtue of his having
been brought before it on a federal indictment (citing United States v. Marks, 530
F.3d 799, 810-11 (9th Cir. 2008))).

Finally, having independently reviewed the record under Penson v. Ohio, 488
U.S. 75 (1988), we find no nonfrivolous issues for appeal outside the scope of the
plea agreement appeal waiver. Accordingly, we affirm, and we grant counsel’s
motion to withdraw.




